
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL
Chief Executive

MOORLANDS PARTNERSHIP BOARD AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 4 November 2020

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

27 October 2020

PART 1
1. Apologies. 

2. To Approve the Minutes from the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 8)

3. Disclosure of Interests: 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests: 
 Other Interests

4. Summary of Projects and Update on Progress. (Pages 9 - 12)

5. Financial Summary and Proposed Grant Awards. (Pages 13 - 18)

6. Any Other Business. 

ANDREW STOKES
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Moorlands Partnership Board
Councillor M Bowen Councillor J Davies
Councillor E Fallows Councillor M Gledhill
Councillor A Hart Councillor A Jackson
Councillor I Lawson Councillor R Locker
Councillor I Plant Councillor T Riley
Councillor H Sheldon MBE (Chair) Councillor D Shaw
Councillor P Turner Councillor S Wales
Councillor E Wain Councillor P Wood

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

MOORLANDS PARTNERSHIP BOARD MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 11 MARCH 2020
PRESENT: Councillor H Sheldon MBE (Chairman) 

Councillors M Bowen, M Gledhill, A Hart, I Plant, T Riley 
P Routledge and P Turner

APOLOGIES: Councillors E Fallows, A Jackson, R Locker and D Shaw

51 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Meeting held on the 6th November 2019 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

52 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS:

Agenda No. Member Declaring 
Interest

Nature of Interest

Items 5 & 6
Cllr Hart

Other – A member of 
Biddulph Town Council 
and Deputy Chair of 
Peak Leadership 
Programme. Also 
involved with the 
projects in Biddulph 
(supported by the MPB) 
and knows the owners 
of Mill House Pool, 
Biddulph.

Items 5 & 6 Cllr Gledhill

Other – Had previously 
worked at the Churnet 
Valley Railway as a 
musician.

Items 5 & 6 Cllr Sheldon

Other – A member of 
Biddulph Town Council. 
Also involved with the 
projects in Biddulph 
(supported by the MPB) 
and knows the owners 
of Mill House Pool, 
Biddulph.

Items 5 & 6 Cllr Riley
Other – Owns shares in 
the Churnet Valley 
Railway.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Moorlands Partnership Board - 11 March 2020

2

Item 5 Cllr Plant
Other – Involved with 
the Market Cross 
project in Cheadle.

53 FINANCIAL REVIEW AND SUMMARY OF PROJECTS.

At this point in the meeting, Joanne Brookes advised, that to avoid duplication of 
information, she would present the financial review and summary of projects, rather 
than a member of the Finance Team.

Members were in agreement with this, and it was noted that a member of the 
Finance Team would attend the Board should the need arise.

The Board received a report which provided a financial summary of funding available 
to the Partnership to allocate during the financial year. Tables 1 and 2 contained 
within the report provided a summary of the allocation of grant funding.  

Discussion took place around the amount of funding the Board had to allocate and it 
was decided that the Board would not pursue additional funding this year.

RESOLVED - That the report be noted.

54 CURRENT STATUS OF PROJECTS.

The Board received a report and presentation on the current status of projects at:-

 Gazebo, Whitehough, Ipstones – Scheme completed once the doors have 
been installed.

 The Trough, Biddulph – Awaiting commencement.
 Cheddleton Station – Recommended that the grant be reallocated against the 

repair of the surface of the platform.
 Funerary Monuments – additional grant funding had allowed the repair of all 

the remaining listed and at risk funerary monuments to be completed. Works 
to commence shortly. 

 Biddulph Town Council Projects -
o Railings A527 – Railings installed and grant paid. 
o Gillow Heath Station - A small working group had been formed and 

this had turned into a four phase project: Stage 1: SMDC Assets Team 
to arrange the removal of the fence before the benches could be 
installed. Stage 2: Restoration of the edge of the platform stones. The 
stones had now been sourced. Stage 3: was the installation of signage 
and interpretation boards – No update. Stage 4: Was to repair the 
nearby footbridge.  

 Foxlowe, Leek – Repair works to the roof completed.  Final payment of grant 
to be paid once window and render repairs were completed. 

 1 High Street, Cheadle – Works delayed pending planning permission
 Leekbrook Interpretation Panels - Historic photographs and text were in the 

process of being sourced. 
 Victoria Buildings - Little interest from the owners to progress their respective 

grant, therefore, it was recommended that the £20,000 was used against 
other grant projects.

 Mill House Pool, Biddulph – due to commence on the 6th April. Page 4



Moorlands Partnership Board - 11 March 2020

3

 St Peters Church, Alton – works completed and grant to be paid
 Market Cross, Cheadle – awaiting commencement
 Halls Road Community Notice Board, Biddulph - Preferred option for the 

noticeboard had been selected and the map was nearly complete. 

RESOLVED:

(Councillors Gledhill, Hart and Riley had declared interests and did not vote on the 
item relating to Cheddleton Station.)

1) That the update report be NOTED.

2) That the £4,000 grant offered against the repair of Cheddleton Station 
building was reallocated against the reinstatement of diamond cut blue 
bricks to allow the original brick pattern to be restored be APPROVED.

3) The Board APPROVED the ‘in principle’ allocation of £20,000 against 
the Victoria Buildings to be reallocated against other grant applications.

55 APPROVAL OF PROJECTS.

The purpose of the report was to seek member’s approval to allocate grant funding 
from the Moorlands Partnership Board. The budget for this year was £50,000. The 
table below showed the allocations to date. 

 
Scheme Budget £55,000 (inc 

Staffordshire Historic 
Churches Trust (SHCT) 
contribution)

Victoria Buildings (Odeon Antiques) £20,000 in principle 
allocation and subject to 
grant applications from 
owners. 

Tudor House £4,000
Foxlowe phase 2 £8,000
Funerary Monuments £10,000
Mill House Pond £2,364
St Peters Church wall repairs £925
Market Cross, Cheadle £1,320
Community boards Hall Rd £600
Balance of funds £7,791
Balance of funds (exc Victoria Bldgs £27,791
Total potential grant offers for this MPB 
meeting 
42 Crompton, Leek
55 Chorley Street, Leek
St Johns Church, Hollington  
Kingsley & Froghall Station
Leekbrook Rail

£27,791

£3,000
£4,000
£4,000
£4,000
£12,791

Unallocated funds £0
Page 5



Moorlands Partnership Board - 11 March 2020

4

RESOLVED:

(Councillors Gledhill, Hart and Riley declared an ‘other’ interest and took no part in 
the vote for the grant funding towards the re-instatement of track and bed at 
Leekbrook.)

1) That Members APPROVED a grant of £3,000 towards the reinstatement of 
traditional sliding sash windows at 42 Crompton, Leek, with the cost of eligible 
works totalling £6,000 (inc VAT). The work would be subject to the standard 
grant scheme conditions and the following technical conditions:

 Agree exact dimension and profile of glazing bar.
 Replacement windows are decorated to an agreed colour 

scheme.
 Planning permission is obtained for the replacement windows. 

2) That Members APPROVED a maximum grant of £4,000 for the repair and 
renovation of the retail frontage at 55 Chorley Street, Leek with the cost of 
eligible works totalling £8,180 (VAT inc). The work would be subject to the 
standard grant scheme conditions and the following technical conditions;

 The works must comply with the planning approval 
SMD/2019/0673 including the discharge of all conditions relating 
to joinery details pertaining to the renovation of the existing 
timber shopfront. 

 Any variations must be agreed with both the conservation officer 
and grants officer. 

3) That Members APPROVED a maximum grant of £4,000 towards the 
reinstatement of a collapsed wall at St Johns Church, Hollington with the cost of 
eligible works totalling £8,660 (VAT not applicable). The work would be subject 
to the standard grant scheme conditions and the following technical conditions:

 Any new stone required is to match the existing stone
 The wall to be reinstated to the same height and profile as the 

existing wall
 Pointing specification to be agreed

4) That Members APPROVED a maximum grant of £4,000 towards the repair of 
the Kingsley and Froghall Station (Platform 1), with the cost of the eligible works 
totalling £25,276 (plus VAT). The works would be subject to the standards grant 
conditions. 

5) That Members APPROVED the allocation of remaining funds of £12,791 
towards the reinstatement of track bed at Leekbrook, with the cost of eligible 
works totalling £25,180 (+ VAT). The works would be subject to standard grant 
conditions. 

Page 6



Moorlands Partnership Board - 11 March 2020

5

56 ANY OTHER BUSINESS.

The Board was advised that it was anticipated that an application for grant funding 
would be received from Cheadle Cards, High Street in Cheadle.

Members were also reminded that the next meeting date hadn’t been agreed but it 
was likely to be held in July 2020.

The meeting closed at 3.35 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Moorlands Partnership Board
4 November 2020

TITLE: Summary of projects and update on 
progress

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor S Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Joanne Brooks - Regeneration Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: All wards

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To update and review progress on the grants already approved (in previous 
years) under the Moorlands Partnership Board. 

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the update report is noted

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report deals with progress on projects, awaiting commencement, on site 
or, completed since the last meeting of the Moorlands Partnership Board. 

3.2 This report is for information only but does offer Members an opportunity to 
comment on progress. The report will be presented with an accompanying 
power point presentation which displays images of each project.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 This report concerns publicly funding the enhancement, restoration or repair of 
historic properties or places that are either listed or an identified heritage 
asset. This, in turn, is related to the Council’s corporate aim 3:

 To help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of 
towns and villages. 

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no alternative options as this an update report on progress only. 

6. Project updates and progress

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2015/16 OFFERS:

Gazebo, Whitehough, Ipstones
Still waiting for doors to be installed and then the scheme will be complete.

2016/17 OFFERS:

The Trough, Biddulph
Awaiting commencement. listed building consent has been approved and 
works will be undertaken in better weather. The Town Council are waiting to 
hear if SCC Highways will install bollards to protect the trough form being hit. 

2017/2018 OFFERS:

Cheddleton Station
The reinstatement of the historic pattern of diamond cut bricks and plain bricks 
has been completed and the grant paid. Despite the offer of funds being 
reallocated from the 2017/2018 grant offer, the funding has been allocated 
from the 2020/2021 budget. 

Funerary Monuments 
The continued repair of the funerary monuments project has been 
supplemented by a further £5,000 grant from the MPB and an additional 
£5,000 grant from the Staffordshire Historic Churches Trust (SHCT). The most 
recently completed monument is the Sarah Hyatt Memorial in the Church of St 
Margaret, Draycott. A start on the outstanding monuments will be commenced 
shortly. 

Biddulph Town Council Projects
Railings A527 – Railings installed and grant paid. 

Gillow Heath Station – The town council is in discussion with SMDC Assets to 
look at relocating the fence between the platform and car park. Two new 
benches will then be installed and the edge of the platform reinstated with 
matching bricks which have now been sourced. The MPB has previously 
allocated £641 towards this project. However, the cost of reinstating the bricks 
along the platform edge and clearing the platform has been costed by the 
Town Council’s lengthsman at £4,000.  There is an additional request for grant 
funding on an accompanying report. 

2018/2019 OFFERS: 

Foxlowe, Leek
Works to repair the roof are complete but the final payment of grant is not yet 
made. The render repairs are now in hand and contractors are currently on 
site.  

1 High Street, Cheadle
Planning permission for the conversion of this property into two dwellings has 
been approved. There are conditions on the approval which require a 

Page 10



schedule of repairs for all the joinery details. There has been no application to 
discharge conditions and works have halted.  

Leekbrook Interpretation Panels 
Historic photographs and text are in the process of being sourced. No further 
update is available. 

2019/2020 OFFERS:  

Mill House Pool, Biddulph 
Works are now complete, and the grant paid. 

St Peters Church, Alton
Works to repair the wall are now complete and the grant paid. 

Market Cross, Cheadle 
Works to repair the cross are now complete and the grant paid. 

Halls Road Community Notice Board, Biddulph 
Preferred option for the noticeboard has been selected and the map is nearly 
complete. No update available. 

42 Crompton Road, Leek
No further update to report.  

55 Chorley Street
The agent has been liaising with conservation staff to discharge all the 
planning conditions relating to the repair and restoration of the joinery details 
for the conversion of this property and the retention of the shopfront. An 
application to discharge the joinery conditions has been submitted and works 
will commence shortly. 

St Johns the Evangelist Church, Hollington
Works to repair the wall have now started on site. 

Kinglsey and Froghall Station Platform
Works not started on site yet. 

Leekbrook Rail Track
At the last meeting of the MPB (March 2020) Churnet Valley Railway (CVR) 
were awarded the remaining grants budget of £12,791 towards the 
reinstatement of a further length of track bed at Leekbrook (approx. 200m). 
Subsequent to this, CVR has been awarded £1.4m of funding from the 
European Agricultural Fund for Rural Development (EAFRD) to reinstate the 
entire length of rail track from Leekbrook to Cornhill. As a result, the MPB 
funded element will now form part of the main contract. CVR need to find 
match funding of £250,000 before works can commence. There is an 
additional report on this project elsewhere on the agenda. 

7. Implications 

Page 11



7.1 Community Safety – No implications at this stage. 

7.2 Workforce – The Moorlands Partnership Scheme is administered by an officer 
within the regeneration team with assistance when required from the council’s 
conservation officer.

7.3 Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment - No implications at this 
stage. 

7.4 Financial considerations - There are allocations within the capital programme 
for funding the Moorlands Partnership Grant scheme. The projects outlined in 
this report have been met from approved budgets from previous years.  

7.5 Legal - Local authorities are empowered to give grants towards improvements 
in conservation areas under Section 57 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

7.6 Climate Change – No Implications at this stage. 

7.7 Consultation – Grant offers are made in consultation with and approved by the 
Moorlands Partnership Board. Where required, projects that require planning 
permission and listed building consent are subject to the normal statutory 
consultations.   

Neil Rodgers - Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Joanne Brooks
Regeneration Officer
joanne.brooks@highpea
k.gov.uk

Page 12



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Moorlands Partnership Board 
4th November 2020

TITLE: Financial summary and proposed grant 
awards 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor S Ralph - Council Leader SMDC

CONTACT OFFICER: Joanne Brooks - Regeneration Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: All

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is for Members to note the financial summary and to 
seek Member’s approval to allocate grant funding from the Moorlands 
Partnership Board (MPB) in 2020/21. The budget for this year is £50,000. 

2. Recommendation

2.1 To note the financial summary as set out in 3.1 and 6.4 of this report. 

2.2 That Members approve a 50% grant of £2,000 towards the reinstatement of 
matching and reclaimed edging bricks for Gillow Heath Station platform at a 
cost of £4,000. 

2.3 Consider the principle of offering any unallocated funds at the end of this 
financial year (March 2021) as a contribution towards match funding for CVR 
towards the £1.4m offered by EAFRD in relation to the reinstatement of the 
heritage rail link between Leekbrook and Cornhill. 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report allows members to consider applications for environmental 
enhancement and heritage grants under the MPB for funding toward suitable 
projects within the district. To date the following awards have been made this 
financial year. 

Scheme Budget £50,000 
Cheddleton Station platform 
repairs 

£4,000

Balance of funds £46,000
Total potential grant offers for 
this MPB meeting 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Gillow Heath Station £2,000
Remaining funds £44,000

3.2 Members will note that the £4,000 set against Cheddleton Station platform 
repairs has been allocated from this year’s budget, rather than reallocated 
from the original grant offer towards the station building repairs in 2017/2018. 
This is because the applicant was unable to take up the original grant offer 
and therefore the offer was removed from the grant allocation.  However, 
subsequent conversations with the applicant suggested that an alternative 
project at the station could take advantage of the grant award. This was 
approved by members, but on the understanding that this would be allocated 
from 2017/18. However, after discussion with finance this allocation has to be 
made against this year’s budget, and hence the inclusion above.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 This report concerns publicly funding the enhancement, restoration or repair of 
historic properties or places that are either listed or an identified heritage 
asset. This, in turn, is related to the Council’s corporate aim 3:

 To help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of 
towns and villages.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 To not approve environmental and heritage grant awards under the Moorlands 
Partnership Board and not allocate the capital budget of £50,000 set aside for 
this grant scheme. As a result, the MPB would not be able to continue to 
financially assist a number of environmental and heritage projects throughout 
the district and secure the repair, restoration and enhancement of heritage 
features, places and buildings. NOT RECOMMENDED 

5.2 To continue to approve environmental and heritage grant awards towards 
suitable projects throughout the district and to ensure the allocation of the 
budget of £50,000 each year. As a result, the MPB can financially assist with 
projects that secure the repair, restoration or enhancement of heritage 
features, places and buildings and contribute towards the further regeneration 
of town and villages throughout Staffordshire Moorlands. RECOMMENDED  

6. Implications 

6.1 Community Safety – No implications at this stage. 

6.2 Workforce – The Moorlands Partnership Scheme is administered by an officer 
within the regeneration team with assistance when required from the council’s 
conservation officer.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment - No implications at this 
stage. 

Page 14



6.4 Financial considerations - There are allocations within the capital programme 
for the funding of the Moorlands Partnership scheme. The latest financial 
position states that there is £58,634 of works outstanding and still to be 
claimed. Whilst this is a significant figure a number of larger grant offers are on 
site or have an imminent date start as follows:

Foxlowe Arts Centre £9,000 On site
Funerary Monuments £8,772 On site
55 Chorley Street £5,000 Start imminent
Hollington Church £4,000 On site
Leekbrook Rail £12,791 Part of larger project 
Total £39,563

The economic impact of Covid has resulted in less interest in the grant 
scheme within this financial year. The impact of lockdown and continuing local 
restrictions has resulted in economic impacts that have placed financial 
burdens on property and business owners investing in their buildings.  As a 
result, it is unlikely that the entire £50,000 budget will be allocated this year. In 
previous years, any unallocated funds are not rolled forward. However, this 
year has been subject to unprecedented and unusual circumstances and the 
finance team, has agreed to allow unallocated funds to be rolled forward to 
future years.  They are suggesting that unless anything exceptional arises, the 
allocation for this year is reduced to £10,000 and that the remaining £40,000 is 
spread across the next 4 years (£60,000 each year). 

In order to encourage grant take up in future years it is suggested that we use 
the Town Centre Regeneration Officer to publish and highlight the scheme. 

6.5 Legal - Local authorities are empowered to give grants towards improvements 
in conservation areas under Section 57 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

6.6 Climate Change – No Implications at this stage. 

6.7 Consultation – Grant offers are made in consultation with and approved by the 
Moorlands Partnership Board. Where required, projects that require planning 
permission and listed building consent are subject to the normally statutory 
consultations.   

Neil Rodgers Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Joanne Brooks
Regeneration Officer
joanne.brooks@highpea
k.gov.uk

Page 15



7. PROPOSED GRANT AWARDS

7.1 Gillow Heath Station – In 2017/18 the MPB awarded an allocation of £2700 
towards various Biddulph Town Council projects. Of this £641 was allocated 
towards two benches at Gillow Heath Station. This project has been extended 
to include the restoration of the platform by relocating the rear fence, removing 
the vegetation and restoring the platform edge using reclaimed bricks to 
match. 

Biddulph Town Council has suggested that their lengthsman can complete the 
works at a cost of £4,000. A 50% grant from the MPB would be £2,000. 

Recommendations 

7.2 That members approve a 50% grant of £2,000 towards the eligible works 
totalling £4,000. 

7.3 Leekbrook Rail  - Members will be aware of this significant project that 
proposes to restore the heritage rail link between Leekbrook and Cornhill in 
Leek. The MPB has already funded the project as follows:

 
Year MPB Grant Works
2017/18 £22,000 Planning and legal 

fees - Complete 
2018/19 £19,000 Rail track bed 

450m - Complete
2019/20 £12,791 Rail track bed 

200m - 
Outstanding 

TOTAL £53,791

7.4 The applicant CVR, has been successful in its bid to the European Agricultural 
Fund for Rural Development (EAFRD) and has been awarded £1.4m to 
reinstate the whole length of the track  The Leekbrook to Leek rail line 
extension is a strategic first step of delivering Corporate Objective Aim 3: to 
reinstate rail connection to Stoke and mainline rail. While this line will be 
operated as a heritage line, the line will be available for open access under 
Railways Acts (1993) meaning it has the potential to be adopted and used as 
a branch line if funding becomes available in the future to establish a rail 
connection between Leek and Stoke on Trent.

7.5 Despite the award of £1.4m the CVR are required to raise match funding. 
They are currently £250,000 short. This issue has principally arisen due to the 
Covid outbreak and there is a reluctance for banks to loan to a social 
enterprise type business.  Banks had previously indicated a willingness to loan 
once the funding of £1.4m was confirmed. In addition, the CVR Board also felt 

Page 16



it was inappropriate to promote and undertake a share option at this time when 
so many people in the community are subject to a restricted income due to the 
impacts of covid.  As a result, the CVR have lost their ability to raise match 
funding under normal procedures. Without finding the match funding there is a 
possibility that the £1.4m could be lost and the project will not be completed.  

7.6 Notwithstanding the financial impacts set out in 6.4 above, one possible option 
is that the MPB consider the principle of using any unallocated monies from 
this financial year towards this project. This decision would be subject to an 
update report on progress by CVR in securing additional match funding in 
March 2021. 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To Approve the Minutes from the Previous Meeting.
	4 Summary of Projects and Update on Progress.
	5 Financial Summary and Proposed Grant Awards.

